Appendix A
NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Smith Kline/Accupath License No. 53%-15280-01
2469 South King Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96326

As a result of the inspection conducted on February 5, 1982, and in
accordance with the Interim Enforcement Policy, 45 FR 66754 (Oc*ober 7,
1930), the following violations were identified:

A. License Condition 12. states that licensed material shall be used
g{.ior under the supervision of, Lynne Thornton or Dr. Robert C.
a rl

Contrary to the above, at the time of the inspection, February S,
1922, licensed material was befng used by four persons who were not
under the supervision of Lynne Thornton or Dr. Flafir.

This 1s a Severity Level IV Violation (Supplement VII).

B. License Condition 10. states that licensed material shall be used
only at 2825 Paa Street, #1140; Honolulu, Hawaii.

Contrary to the above, at the time of the inspection, February 5, 193¢,
licensed material (175 microcuries of fodine-125) was being used at
2463 S. King Street, Honolulu, Hawai{.

This is a Severity Level IV Violation (Supplement VII).

C. 10 CFR 30.51(a) requires each licensee to maintain records showing
the disposal of byproduct material. Also, 10 CFR 20.401 (c)(3)
requires that records of disposals made pursuant to 20.303 to the
sanitary sewer be maintained until the Commission authurizes their
disposition.

Contrary to these requirements, at the time of the inspection,

there were no records maintained by the laboratory of materials
disposed to the sanitary sewer between the date of lfcense issuance,
January 5, 1979, and the date of the inspection, February 5, 1982.

This is a Severity Level V Violation (Supplement VII).

D. 10 CFR 19.11(a) and (c) require that each Ticensee thall post
current copies of the following documents: (1) the regulations in
this part and in part 20 of this chapter; (2) the 1icense, license
conditions, or documents incorporated into a license by reference,
and anendments thereto; (3) the operating procedures appiicable to
the licensed activities; (4) Form NRC-3, 10 CFR 19.11(b) states
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that 1f posting of a document specified in paragraph (a)(1), (2)
or (3) of th¥s section 1s not practicable, the licensee may post a
not!:e which describes the document and states where it may be
examined,

Contrary to the above requirements, at the time of the inspection,
the above documents and Form NRC-3 were not posted in the labora-
tory, nor was there a snotice which describes the docunments and
states where they may be exaained.

This 1s a Severity Level Vi Violatfon (Suplement YII).

Pursuant to the provisfons of 10 CFR 2,201, Smith Kline/Accupath is
hereby required to submit to this office within thirty days of the date
of this dotice, a written statement or explanation in reply, including:

{1 the corrective staps which have been taken and the results achieved;

2) corrective steps which will be taken to avofd further {tems of
noncompliance; and (3) the date when full compliance will be achieved.
Consideration may be given to extending your response time for good
cause shown.

Under the authority of Section 1382 of th "+tomic Energy Act of 1954, as
amended, this response shall be submit’ r oath or affirmation.

grigina}ejzgned by
o Re K nger
22 108?
dated FEB

B. A. Riedlinger, Radiation specfa'ist
Radiolugical Safety Branch
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NUCLEAR PEGULATORY
COMMISSION

10CFR P2

Proposed General Stitement of Policy
and Procedure ior Enforcement
Actions

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.

AcTion: Proposed general staw ment of
policv.

sumMMAaRY: The U8 Nuclear Regulatory
Comrmission (NRC) has under
consideration the [ullowiag staff-
proposed solicy statement on
enforcement policies and procedures.
This proposed policy stutement is
intended 1o inform Licensees and the
public of the bases for tiking various
enforcoment actions. ' i inteirded that
this pelicy, a iinally adopted, be
codified as Appndix C to Part 2 of Tutie
10 of the Cede of Federal Regulations.
ianding final adoption of the policy, the
Proposes General Statement of Policy
will be used as guidance to the NRC
aaff a teking enforcement actions.
DATE: Comments are due on or before
December 31, 1080,

ADORE3SES: Send comments and
suavestions to: Secretary of the
Commisison, U D, iNuclear Regulatory
Comm'ssion, Wa- Yington, 1).C. 20555,

stention: Docketing and Service Brench.

Copies of comments may be examined
in the U5, Nuelear Regulatory
Commission Public liocument Room,
1717 11 Street, N W, Washington, D.C.
FOA FUNTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Dudley T .ompson, Executive Ofticer for
Operations Suppoert. Office of Inspection
and Enforcement, 'S, Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,

1 C. 20555 (301-492-8487).
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
criteria used by the Commission’s staff
to determine enforesment action and
categories of nencompliance (referred to
herefrom as “Critenia”’) were fust
pablished on On tober 17, 1972 (57 FR
2002 Lhese Cotevia were
subsequently modihed on January 3,
1975 (30 'R #20) and on Decentber 3,
1979 (44 PR 77100). Since late 1979, the
Commission has heen considering the
publication of a comprehensive
statemnent af caforcement policy. Added
prgency for the development of such a
pohey statement has arisen from the
perdency, and now the enactment and
approval of Pub. L. 96-295 (approved
June 10, 1980). that, among other things,
amended section 234 of the Atomic
Energy Act to raise the maximum civil
penalty from 35,000 1) $100,000 and

eliminated the provision Limiting the
total civil pepalties payabls in any 30-
day period to $25.000,

The proposed statement of general
policy set out below [Appendix € to Part
2) explains how the Commission will
utilize its various enforcement
authorities. The Commission is
particularly interested in comments on
the use of Table 2 (see Section IV, F).

Appendix € —General Policy and
Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions

The following statement of general
policy and procedure explains the
policies and procedures to be followed
by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commissic n and its stafl in initiating
enforcement actions and by presiding
officers, the Atomic Saflety and
Licensing Avpeal Boards, and the
Commission in reviewing these actions.
This stutement is applicable to
enforcement in matters involving the
public Yeaith and safety, the common
defonse and security, and the
environment.'

1. lIntroduction and Purpose

The goals of the NRC's enforcement
program are:

—to ensure “compliance with NRC
regulations and license conditions™; *

—to ubtain “prompt correction of
Liconsee weaknesses ', ?

—to deter “future noncompliance
through strong enforcement
measures”; ‘and

-~to encourage improvement of licensee
performance, thus enhancing the
degree of proteciton of public health
and safety, common defense and
sccurity, and the environment.

To help achieve these goals, the
enforcement program “will emphasize
prompt and vigorous enforcement”
when dealing with persons “who are
unable or unwilling to comply with NRC
requirements” and, in any case, will
“assure that a licensee will not benefit
by violating NRC regulations.” * It is tue
Commission’s intent that its
enforcement program be norked by “an
aptensve enforcement stratepy that
sechs more frequent wse of stronger
enforcement measuces™ and
implementation that assures “that
noncomelinnce is more expensive than
compliunee.” *These policies are
intended to assure that the necessary

Y Antitmust enfurcement matters will be dealt with
on 8 case by case basis
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“metic Jdous attention to detail” " and
“high standurd of compliance™ * will be
achieved. Furthermore, “licensees who
cannot achieve and mainta'n adequate
levels of protection will not be permatted
to operate.” *

11. Legal Framework

The Commission’s enforcement
jurisdiction is drawn essentially from
the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as
amended (sections 161, 186, and 234)
and the Energy Reorganizaiton Act
(sections 206 and 223).

Section 161 of the Atomic Energy Act
authorizes NRC to conduct inspections
and issue any orders that may be
“necessary or desirable to promote the
common defense and security or to
rrolect health or to minimize danger to

ife or property.” Section 188 authorizes
NRC to revoke licenses under certain
circumstances (e.g.. for material false
statements, in response to conditions
that would have warranted refusal of a
license on an original application, for a
licensee's failure to build or operate a
facility in accordance with the terms of
the permit or license, and for violation
of a Commission regulation). However,
licensees must be given an opportunity
to demonstrate or achieve compliance
tefore a license may be revoked or
suspended (except in cases of
willfulness or thore in which the public
health, interest, o1 safety require
otherwise). Section 234 authorizes NRC
to impose civil penalties for the
violation of certain specified licensing
rrovisiuns of the Act. rules, orders, and

icense terms implementing these

rrm isions, and violations for whirh

icenses can be revoked.

The Atomic Energy Act {Chapter 18)
also authorizes NRC to obtain
injunctions in response to violations of
the Act (or any reguation or order issued
under the authority of the Act). In
addition, the Act provides for varying
leve!s of criminal penalties (ie.,
monetary fines and imprisonment) for
willful violations of—

(1) Sections 57, 92, 101, and 108;

(2) Any other section of the Act or any
reglation or order prescnbed or issued
under secton 65 or subsections 1610,
161i., or 1610.; und

(3) The requirements set forth in the
Act concerning the receipt, tampering,
and disclosare of Restricted Data and
trespass upon Commission installations.

Section ©23 of the Atomic Energy Act
also establishes criminal penalties

Yo the Matter of X Ray Enginvering Co., 1 AEC
553, 555 [1%0)

i the Alater of Hamlin Testing Laboratories,
Inc. 2 AEC 420 428 [1'nA)

PIPC. etparallAla



Federal Register /| Vol 45, No. 196 | Tuesday, October 7. 1950 | Prenosed Rales

applicable to certain individuals of a
firm constructing or supplying the
components of any utilization facility
licensed under section 103 or 104(b).
Those individuals inciude any director,
officer, or employee of such firms. Under
the section, it would be a criminal
offense if any of these individuals “by
act or omission, in ceanection with such
construction or supply. knowingly and
willfully viulates or caises to be
violated, any section of this Act (iL.e., the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended)
any rule, regulation, or erder issued
thereunder, or any license condition,
which violation results, or if undetected
could have resulted, in a significant
impairment of a besic component of
such a facility * * *."

A "basic component” is defined in
section 223 generally along the lines of
the definition in 10 CFR Part 21, Part 21
implements section 206 of the Energy
Reorganization Act of 1974. Section 208
of the Energy Reorganization Act
authorizes NRC to impose a civil
penalty in an amount equal to that
authonzed by section 234 of the Atomic
Energy Act for certain failures to report
known safety defects in licensed
facilities or activities. Section 206 has an
approach similar to section 223, but
section 208 does not provide for eriminal
penalties and is not as limited in scope
a9 is the language in section 223.%°

All alleged or suspected criminal
violations of the Atomic Energy Act are
investigated by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation of the Department of
Justice. _

The Commission hss implemented i
enforcement provisions of the Atomic
Energy Act and the Energy
Reorganization Act by regulations set
forth in 10 CFR Part 2 (§§ 2.201, 2.202,
2.204, and 2.205) and in 10 CFR Part 21.
10 CFR 2.201 governs the issuance of
notices of violation. Sections 2.202 and
2.204 of Title 10 set forth pracedures for,
respectively,

(1) orders to show cause why licenses
should not be amended, suspended, or
revoked or why such other action as
may be proper should not be taken, and

(2} orders modifying liconses.

Immediately effective ordening actisns
must be hased on o linding that the
|mh|u. health, nterest, or salety Fegeats ey
such actions, or that the basis for the
action was a willful violation.

Section 2.205 sets forth procedures for
assessing civil penalties.

Corrective enforcement actions mavy
be taken in the absence of any vislation

“The preceding descriptions ere summaries of
the basic emorcement provisions of thi statutes
where important. the actual words of the stutules
should be consulted
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of NRC requirements; for example, when
a safety problem not previously covered
by a requirement is discovered. NRC
impaoses civil penalties, however, only
on the basis of a violation of an existing
requirement,

liL. Severity of Violations

Regulatory requirements have varying
degrees of safety, safeguards, or
environmental significance. This policy
stutement cateqgorizes all violations in
terms of six levels of severity to show
their relative importance. Severity Level
I has been assigned to violations that
are the most significant; Severity Level
Vi violations are the least significant.

Severity Levels I, If, and 1l comprise
violations that are of significant
regulatory concern. In general,
violations thut are included in these
severity categories involve actuai or
high potential impact on the public.
Severity Level 1V violations include
degradation of eagineered systems or
manuagement control systems designed
to assure proper plant construction or te
detect, prevent, or miligate an event.
Although Severity Level IV violations in
themselves are not cause for significant
concern, they are the sort of violations
that, if left uncorrected, could lead to
matters of significant concern. Severity
Level V covers other less serious
violations that are of other than minor
concern, Severity Levol VI defines
viciations that are of minur concern.

Because of the considerable
differences in the types of activities
regulated by the NRC. violations of
regulatory requirements have been
scaled arcarding to their relative
importonce within each of the foilowing
BUVEON BTN

11} Reactor Operations (Supplement §),

12) F.cility Censtruction {Supplement
1)

{3) Safeguards (Supplement 1D,

(4} Health Phy sics 10 CFR 20
(Supplement IV),

(5) Transportation (Supplement V),

(6) Fuel Cycle Operations
(Supplement V1), and

(7) Materials Operations (Supplement
vin

Detuiled pmdance is provided in
Sepplements VI for determining the
rppropriade seventy level for violations
i cach of thewe seven aveas of licensed
activitien. Viclations not specilically
identified by a sevenity level will be
placed at the level best suited to the
significance of the particular matter,
Simtlarly, hcensed activities not directly
covered by one of the above listed seven
arcas; e 2., export heense activities; will
be placed in tie wetivity area most
suitable in light of the particular
violation involyed

Y e ——

The NRC expeats licensees and
applicants to provide full, complete,
timely, and accurate information and
reports. Accordingly, unless otherwise
categorized in the Supplements, the
severity level of a violation invelving
the failure to make o required report to
the NRC wiil be based upon the
signiticance of and the circumstances
surrcunding the matter not reported. The
severity level assioned to material false
statenients may be Si verity Level 1, Il or
I}, depending on the circumsianzes
surrounding the statement. Similarly,
failure to make a required Part 21 report
may Lo assigned Soverity Level L 11 or
It

IV, Eaforcement Actions

This svction desciibes the 1
enforcement sanctians available to KRC
and specifics (he conditions under
which cach is to Lo v d The basic
sanctions are notices of violation, civil
penaitics, orders o! vanous types, and
the less fornal enioreoment mechanisms
such us bullotins and itemediate action
letters,

A. Netice of Vislation

A Notice of Violetion is a written
notice setting Jorth cne or niore
violatinn: of a leqully binding
requivement. The notice requires the
heensee to oo ide g wnitten atatement,
normally upder o'l describing
corrective actions ciken (or planned),
the result, achies e, the date when full
complicrce will Le womieved, and
COtoctve aoetan s rravent recurrence,

NRG uses the notiee of violation as
the stundord method for fermally
recording the existonce of a violation,
The votice may Le the only enforcement
achon takor or it may be used as a basis
‘tlf O'hl'f O'ﬂ'x)r( cment .u‘.tiuns. Bll(,h s
civil penalties and orders. Because the
Comnussion wants to “encourage and
suppurt licensee initiative for selt-
identification and correction of
problems,” " NRC will not generally
issue notices of visistian Lor 4 violation
that meets all of e foue followane, st

(1) was ide ntifiod by the licenee,

(201 Bt Seseray Level Voos VL

(3 1ewas e et dool reguigest and

(L i o wll By orreetind withon a
sy obildes e

Vieosnecs wre not csdianily cited for
vielatons peanding ;L om rastiors ¢ o
within the contecd of the livense o,
includig ity em o that could not

have been jvare nahle “oreseen, such as,
egquipment faeare ;s Y i ot the result
of persenned error 1adequate design,

procedaics, qual iy aisurance,

.V ' Loattd Prvatam
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fabirication, teating, maintenaice, or
communications

A notice of violation may be issved to
a licensed operator when a failure to
comply with an operator’s license
cuntribates directly to violations of
Severity Levels 1. 1L, or 1L In 2cneral,’
whenever a licensed operator is 1ssued a
notice of vivkition, the icility Leensee
also receves a notice of violat.on, For
vgregous single vielationa by Leensed
operators, or recurnng operator
involvement in Severnity Lovel L 0L, or U1
violations, suspension or revocation of
the operator's Leense will be
coasidered.

B. Civii Peaalty

A Criil Peoclty = a mouetary penalty
for viclation of (&) ¢ tain specificd
lizensing provisions of the Atomic
Energy Act or sunplemientary
Commission rules or a-ders, (h) any
requirement tor which a license may be
revoked, or (¢) reporting teguirements
under section 200 of the Energy
Reorginization Act.

Civil penaities are generally imposed
in the follocwing siiuaticas,

(1) Severity Level 1L or 1 viclations
have occurred;

(2) Severity Level IV and V violations
have cccurred that ace similur to
violations discuised in 4 previous
enforcement contooance, and for which
the enforsement conlerence was
ineffective in achieving the required
corrective action;

(1) There are knowing and
conscious " violations cf the reporting
reguirements of seclion 208 of the
Energy Reorgonization Act; or

(4) Willlul violations of requirements
have occurred.”

In determining the amount of a civil
penalty 1o be aprehied, the Commission
believes the gravity of the violation
involved (vLe., seventy level) is of
paramount caoncern, However, when
making this determination, NRC also
considers the duration of the

B Owdor s may be issued In Ven of or in oddition
a, culd ponalties fog these same aituntions

Tl applying tie qunlancs NRC pormalily
cotmdis g el peanliie s anly for violations that
wecur tony Jie date o e lest s jwestion of within
taww years whichever oo greater. NRC olan consides
the Bicenses s success i raling with pev vioualy
wlentfiod concems Inioieement ronfaren: oo are
pormally conducted for all Severity Level | 11, and
1 violations e we i a9 for Sevariy Level IV and V
vin‘ations that sre cunsdersd programmate {rether
tian ssolated) covcoems

CThe  nowir g it canerinus standart iy
exlublished by sertion Lmih! of the Energy
Fromg e vion At

W violatome inglude those tvolving

viessy Jaseegard of

quiremienie

noncompliance, how the problem was
identifiod, the financad impact on the
licensee of a given penalty, the good
fuith of the licensee, the licensee’s prior
enforcement history and whether the
violation was willful **

NRC imposes difierent levels of
penall es on different classes ol
licen=ees. The buse values of civil
penslies ordinarily imposed are set

forth in Table 1. These distinctions are
made primarily on the basis of potential
public consrquences. Licensee classes
toward the top of the table are penalized
more heavily because their operations
generally involve greater nuclear
material inventories and greater
potential consequences to the health
and salety of the public as well as
licensee employees.

Tabie 1 —Hase Cuil Fonaltws

Typos of b e

Sevonty wroas OF volalan e

Fower cogctons (O SNV momoos 4 500ated with Caiegory | mals

roal fow set v auned L pOses osily)

Teot wa vy (rust tncudes Omer S4M woamens for faleguard pur

ptaes vy P— —
Dauma 1 uacton (Crtcal facatios) -
AL oihee ACansoes Bl Parons Rtyect 10 GW pansiles

' " L] L v
$50000 0000 $A0000  $15000 $5.000
40000 #0000 20000 1.5%0 2.500
18000 18,000 8.000 3000 1.000
8000 8L 4000 1,500 500

A secondary factor considered in
Table 1 is the ability of various ~lasses
cf licensees to pay the civil penalties. It
is not the Commission’s intention that
the economic impact of a civil penalty
be such that it puts a licensee out of
business or adversely affects a
licensee's ebility to safely conduct
licensed activities. The deterrent effect
of NRC penalties is best served when
the amounts of such penalties teke into
account a licensee's “ability to pav.” As
a general rule, the licensee clagsses
townrd the top of Table 1 represent
larger firma, whereas those toward the

bottam tend to be smaller. When
deterniining the amounts of civil
penalties for licensees for whom the
tuble does not accurately reflect the
ability to pay, NRC will consider
necessary increases or decreases on a
case-by-case basis.

The dellar values shown in Table 1
are those normally imposed for
violriions at the severity levels and for
the tvpes of licensees indicated. Pecause
the NRC considers the potential for an
event to be of similar seriousness e the
vecurrence of the event itself, the civil
penalty nmounts for Severity Level | and
It violations are intentionalty the same.
However, moaddition to civil peaalties,
un Order 18 generally issued for Severity
Levei ! violations.,

If, prior to NRC discovery, a licensee
identiiies, corrects, and (where required)
reports & violation in a timely fastion,
the civil penalty wiil be reduced by as
much us 50 percent of the amounts
shown in Tuble L This policy will

T hese factors ure derived from the Conlerence
Feport v the b Y 8 NRU Authonzetion Ll

previde an incentive to licensees to find
and correct problems on their own.

Civil penalties may be increased as
much as 25 percent of the amounts
shown in Table 1 if the licensee could
reasonably have been expected to have
taken effective preventive measures, For
example, cases in which a licensee had
knowledge of & problem as a result of a
prior NRC inspection or licensee audit,
or issuance of an order, bulletin,
circular, information notice, generic
letter, notice of violation, or other
means, and still failed to comply despite
such prior warning, the additive factor
will apply. Particularly egregious cases,
including cases involving willfulness,
may result in penalties up to the
statutory maximum. On the other hand,
for those cases in which the NRC
concludes that the licensee de .erves
special mitigation for “good faith,” a
aivil penalty may be reduced by as
much as 25 percent of the adjusted
values resulting from reductions, if any,
for special mitigation based on “self
identification™.

The “good faith” reduction will only
be npplied if, in addition 1o meeting the
requitements foi the 50 percent
reduction, the licensee hus taken
extraordinanly prompt and
comprehensive corrective action.

In the case of violations at Severity
Levels 1, 11, or 111, the amounts shown in
Tab'e 1 may be imposed for each
viclation, However, to emphasize the
focus on the specific event(s) or
problem(s) of concern, the cumulative
total for all violations related to a
specific event or problem will generally
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be the amount shown in Table 1. V7 if the
violations involve more than one
specific event or problem, civil penalties
may be assessed for each specific event
or problem. The failure to make a
required report of an event or problem is
considered as a separate event.

A greater civil penalty is imposed if a
violation continues for more than one
day. Each of such violation may
constitute a separate violation for the
purpose of computing the applicable
civil penalty. A continuing Severity 111,
IV or V violation which exceeds the
maximum civil penalty for a single
violation of the next higher severity
level must be approved by the
Commission, e g, a continuing Severity
Level [If violation for a reactor
exceeding $100,000 must be approved by
the Commission. A continuing Severity
Level Lor Il violation which exceeds
three tunes the maximum civil penalty
for a single Severity | violation, ie.,
$300.000, must be approved by the
Commission. Civil penalties in excess of
the limits for each type of license will
require specific Comrnuission approval in
accordance with gaddance set forth in
section V below., .

C. Oruers

An Order 19 a written NRC directive
to modify, suspend, or revoke a license:
to cease and desist from a given practice
or activity; or to take such other action
as may be proper (see 10 CFR 2.202 wiid
2.204).

(1) License Modification Orders ave
issued when some change in the conduct
of a licensed activity 18 necessary.
These orders are made effective
immediately, without prior opportunity
for hearing, whenever it is determined
that the public health, intcrest, or safety
$0 requires, or when the order is
responding to a violatien invelving
willfulness. Otherwise, a prior
opportunity for a hearing on the
modification is afforded. Four cases in
which the NRC believes a basis could
reasonably exist for not modifying the
license as proposed. the licensee will
ordinarily be afforded an opportunity to
show cause why the license should not
be modified in the proposed manner

(2) Suspension Oriders may be used:

(4) To remove u threat to the puble
health and safety, common delense and
security, or the environment;

AR vintations associated with a particalar event
or problem will he catogorized at the same s Verity
lesvel, even though similar violations, if not
wisociated with the event, might otheny e have
been cutepanzed at u lower severty lewel (e 2, the
failure 1o post & radiation warning siea. which
would normally be n Severity Level IV wioiation.
would be categarized as a Seserity Lovel 1
viedation of i contribated 1o an sotudl gy eres pusrre
enceeding § rems)

(b) To stop facility construction when
(i} further work could preclude or
significantly hinder the identification
and correction of an improperly
constructed safety related system or
component, or (ii) the licensee’s quality
assurance program implementation is
not adequate and effective to provide
confidence thot construction activities
are heing properly carried out;

(¢) When the licensee has not
responded adequately to other
erforcement action;

() When the licensee interferes with
the conduct of an inspection or
investigation; or

(¢} For any reason not mentioned
above for which license revocation is
legally authorized.

Suspensions may apply to all or part
of the licensed activity. Ordinarily, a
licensed activity is not suspended (nor is
4 suspension prolonged) for failure to
comply with requiren.ents where such
failure is not willful and adequate
correction action has been taken

The policies governing immcdiately
ef'octive suspension orders and orders
to show cavse are the same as those
previously described above for license
moditication orders.

(3) Revocation Orders may be used:

{a) When a licensee is unable or
unwilling to cumply with NRC
Tequirements,

{b) When a licensee refuses to correct
a viclation,

() ‘When a licensee does not respond
to 2 nolice of violation,

() When a licensee does not pay a
fee required by 10 CFR Part 170, or

() For any other reason for revoking a
license under section 186 of the Atomic
Encrgy Act (e.g., any condition which
would warrant refusal of a license on an
original application).

(4) Cease end Desiot Orders are
typically used to stop an unauthorized
activity that has continued despite
notitication by NRC that such activity is
unauthorized,

D. Other Enforcement Actions

I oddeition 1o the formal enforcement
me lamsme of notce of violations, civil
penatties, and orders, NRC also uses
mformal mechamsms, such as
enforcoment conferences, bulletins,
circulars, information notices, generic
lettors, notices of deviation, and
inimediate action letters as part of its
entorcement and regulatory programs.
NRC expects Licensers to adhere
scrupnlously to any mformai ebligations
and commitments resulting from these
procosses and will not hesitate to issue
anpragiiaie orders to make sure that
expuctation is realized.

(1) Erforcement Canferences are
meetings held by NRC with licensee
management to discuss safety,
safeguards or environmental problems,
licensee complianes with regulatory
requizements, a licensee's proposed
corrective measures (including
scheduies for implementation), and
enforcement options available to the
NRC.

(2) Bulletins. Circulars, Informetion
Noticos and Geoonie Lotters are written
notifications to groups of licensees
identiiying specific problems and calling
for or recommendiug specific actions on
their part. Responaes to these
notifications mav be required to be
under oath or affirmation.

[3) Notices of Deviation are written
notices describing o hicensee's or a
verdor's failare to <atisfy an informal
commitment or iu‘lure to conform to the
provisions of applicable codes,
standards. suides. or serepted industry
practicen The commitment, code,
standa-d practice or yuide involved has
not made @ legally binding requirement,
but it i« a tvpe of activity that a class of
licensces has been encouraged to
follow. The not.ce of deviation requests
the licensee or vendor to provide a
written explanat on or stotement
describing corrective stops taken, the
resuits achieved for corrective steps that
are planned), and the dite when
corrective acticn wili Le completed.

(4) lmadizte dction Letters (1ALs)
are juiters contirming a1 licenase's
agreement to take cortain actions to
remove concerns nhout health and
safety, safeguards, or the environment.

E. Referrais to Dovartnent of Justice

Alleged or suspected criminal
violations of the Atomic Energy Act
(and of other relesant Federal laws) are
referred to the Depart-nent of Justice for
investigaton and censideration of
possible prosecution. Reforral to the
Department of Justice doss not preclude
the NRC from takine other enforcement
action uader thic General Staemoent of
Policy. However, such actions will be
coordiuted wath e Department of

i

Justice to the extint practicaile
”. I.-v 4."-1'“ n ol .""" et

NRC considers violuiions of Severity
Levels L 1L, or It e very serious, If
repetitive serious vioLadions ocenr, NRC
will consider 1ese ro o) fers in
conjunclion wii’ civil jo nodties to
achieve immediate corrective actions
and to doter further 1o cutrence of
serous vioiation:. MU0 carefully
considers the ¢t nces of each
CASe N seleehnd and anpiving the

sanction{s) annronnate o the case in

vt Sace tons



66758 Federal Register / Vol 45 No. 19 [ “Tu by, October 7, 19680 / Proposed Rules
———. — - ——— _— —— - — ‘:_—»—_A__ IE———

accordance with the enteria descrilied
in sections iV B ard V.C, above
FExamples of enforcrment actions that
{eould) (will normaliy) be taken for
Soverdy Level L 1L or Ll violahons are
st forth in Table 2. The actual
progiession to be used in a paricalar
case wi'l depend on the circumstances,

Table 2.=-Lx. mp'cs of Progresson of Fscalat
d Entorcemont ACLo 1S 108 ¥.iulons o the
Same Actvity Area Under the Sune Liconse

Purntad F Sariagl s tons Iroen the G0 of T

ity 1 N o et 0 e e oy 2 reds
” Lt rarend b e R
. PO L) - jps e -
et o ~
' «b a'b g 4
i . ab L R
- L] 4 B
M st panaty

Sgaperviany o 17100 D08 sty il g Cos Dy
Fo L4 o sat Ll that one 8 Lol VA Y sl e
MCOnsed C AN (VEraTe A Lo e b e dDkcahe
e - rerty o el 0 B, Y
€~ MNOow TN e arn o »
B N L
5 bVt AN, B8 AL MOREA'e

Py
Wt of e

Normally the nrogressica ol
entorcemaent act.ons for epeutive
violations will be based ci vielations
under a single lic:nse, When more tian
one facility 13 covered by a single
Licenss, the nermal prosression will be
Lased on repetitive violations at an
individual frcility and not on repetitive
voolations under the sume license,
However, it shauld we noted that voder
LOME CF cumstances, .8, where thore 18
cormmon ¢ontrel oves some facet of
a1y operations; repetitive violations
may be chareed «ven (rough the sccond
violation eccurred «t a difierent facility
and/or undee a ditfoirnt Leens:. For
exarmnle, a phvsioal (ecerity violation at
Uit 2 of 1 dual unat plant that repeats
an carlier violution at Unit 1 might be
consdered repetitive,

V. Responsibilities

The Lircctor, Office of Inspection and
Fuforcement, wi the principal
enforcement otficer of the Commission,
has been dulepated the wuthonty o
fwsue notices of vielations, civil
praaitios, and ordors ot The Diector

o As b aretd s o Do lewtal inferin aton
Gueotion b the Fodega i fe owldee fsotor !
Camtiminsrtitt 18 Jrn o0 0 109 ¢ mme i s ot tiing
the poliny fue the of Fabile 2

e Directore of the il vs of Nuclear Feactar
Rewslatios and Nue e ¢ Matetaale Safety and
Sl gias 01 have atao beo delogatod sirn!

arttorty, vt it enpesced Pt normal use of the
wut ity by NKR and %0758 wiit Le vofined to
wetons nees s9ary in the interest of the public health
and saluiy but not o thane insolviag @ viglation of
Ny eAISNNG fegure oot sirnilarly, ¥ 1 expected

th ot 1k wal? normally confine uve of e suthonty to
# e hoyeed on vl tiane of existing

wete Com Director, Othce of

foggh e

.

A b atrats o has boon deicgat sl the o thonty to
tasue ardees wre o ! 8 MGt Lo nmsson
teas one by o, t of liceniee iore

exercos judement and discretion in
determining the severity ievel of the
violations and the apnropriate
enforcement sanctions, including the
decision to impose a civil penalty and
the ameunt of such penalty, consistent
with the ceneral principles of this
stutement of noliny and the tecunical
merity of the case.

The Commission will he provided
written natthic ation of all enforcement
g oy i olving civil petalties or
ordess. The Conumssion will be
consulied prior to taking enforcement

cticn o e following sitvations (unless
the urgeney of the situation dictates
nmeodiate action):

(1) An azton atiecting facihity
opciations that requires balancing the
poblic health and safety snd conu-on
Gefense and security imphications of not
oporating the faciiity with the potentia!
radiolog:cal or other hazards associated
with facility aperation; **

(2) Froposals 1o unpose civil penalties
in ammounts ereater fhan the Mmaximum
values set forth in section 1IV.B,

(3} Any proposed enforrement action
which the Commissiun esks to be
consuited cn; or

(4) Any action an Office Director
belicves warrants Comrassion
invo!vement,
€ uppleinont L—Sevedty Categories
Reactor Operctions

A. Severity I—Violations involving:

1. A Safety Limit, ua defined in the
Technical Specifications, being
exceeded;

2. A system designed to prevent or
mitizate a serious safety event not heing
ible to perform s intended salety
function when actually called upon to
work:

3. An accidental criticality; or

4. Release of radioactivity ofisite
greater than ten (10) times the Technical
Specification linut.*

b Severity ll=Violaticr.s involving:

1. A system designed o prevent or
miticate seripas safety events not heing
abide to perform its tended safety
function;

2. Release of radwactivity offaite
greater thaa five (5) times the Techmeal
Spec lication hma,*

O Severnity il=Violations involving:

1. A Technical Specification Limiting
Condition for Operation being exceeded
where the approprate Action Statement
w.as not salished;

2. A system designed to prevent or
mitigate a serious salety event not beng

ey poas Poncy, Planning, sad Proyram
Gurdanwae, pera t A2l

hus does not apg Iy to instantaneous release
himit

able to perform its intended functivn
under certain conditions (such as not
operable unless offsite power is
available):

3. Release of radioactivity offsite
preater than the Technical Specification
limnt*; or

4. Violation of 10 CFR 50.59 such that
an amendment was not sought,

D Seventy IV—=Violations involving

1. Inadequate review or the failure to
ke w review in accordance wath 10
CHR 5059 or 10 CFR 21, that does not
result in a sevenity level L, 1L or HI
violation;

2 Any hicense limit, not covered by
Severity Levels L 11 or 111 being
excevded;

3. Failure to meet requirements not
covered in Sevenity Levels 1, 11, or HL
that measurcably degrades the safety of
operations, incident response, or the
environment; or

4. Failure to maxe a required Licensee
Event Report when the reported matter
itself does pot constitute a violation,

E. Severity V—Other violations, such
as failure to follow procedures, that
have other than minor safety or
environmental significance.

F. Severity VI—Violations that have
minor safety or environmental
significance.

Supplement IL—=Severity Categories
Facility Construction

A. Severity I=Violations involving all
or part of a structure or system that is
completed in such a manner that it
would not have satisfied its intended
safety related purpose.

B. Severity il—=Violations involving:

1. A significant deficiency ~ quality
assurance program iraplemente e s
related to more thaa one work acue
(¢ g. structural, piping, electrical,
foundations), as shown by multiple
program implementation violations that
were not identified and corrected untl
alter installation (i.e., completion) and
inspection by the quality assurance/
quality control check points that are
relied upon 1o identily such violations,
o

2. Al or part of a structure or system
that is completed in such a manner that
it coald have an adverse affect on the
safety of operations.

C. Severity Hl—Violations involving:

1. Lack of quality assurance program
implementation related to a single work
activity (e.g. structural, piping.
electrical, or foundations) as shown by
multiple progrum implementation
violations that were not identified and
corrected by more than one quality
assurance/quality contrul checkpoint
relied upon to wentify such violations;
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2 Preoperational test program
tmplementation i which the violations
result in fuiling to confirm the design
safety requirements of the structure or
system; or

3. Failure to make a required 10 CFR
50.55(e) report ‘

D. Severity IV—=Violations involviag:

1. Failure to follow one or more
Quality Assurance Critenia not
amounting to Severity Level L 1, or 11
violations; or

2. Inadequate review or the failure to
make i review in accordance with 10
CFR Part 21,

E. Seventy V—Other violations, such
a8 Lailure 1o follow procedures, that
have other than minor safety or
environmental significance.

F. Seventy Vi—Violations that have
minor safety or environmental
significance.

Supplement [IL—Severity Categories
Sufeguards*

A Sevenity I-Violations involving:

1. Actual entry of an unauthorized
individual into a vital area or material
access area from outside the protected
area that was undetected at the time of
entry;

2. Actual theft, loss, or diversion of
special nuclear material (SNM) or an act
of radiological sabotase; or

3. Failure to promptly report an setual
or attempted theft or diversion of S55NM
or an act of radiological sabotage.

. Severity [1—=Violutions involving:

1. Breakdown of security systems
designed or used to prevent any
unauthorized individual from entering a
vital area or material aceess area from
outside the protected arca such that
arcess could have been gauned without
detection;

2. Failure to operate the central (or
sccondary) alarm stution;

3. Failure to respond to unauthorized
or unanticipated security alarm
annunciations;

4. Fuilure to establish or maintain
safeguards systems designed or
employed to prevent or detect the
unautharized removal of Category |
SNM from areas of authorized wse or
storage, or

5 Breakdown of transportation
security systems designed or employed
to prevent the theft, loss, or diversion of
SNM or acts of radiological sabotase,

C. Seventy ill—Violations invalving:

"Some transportation requircments are appled to
oo than one Licensen Lavolved in the same
wtiaaty such am @ siipper (10 CFR 73290 and o
Curtier (10 CFR 70 204) When o violation of such o
fequirem et occurs. enforcencnt notion will be
directed agninat the e ponsihile hoensee which
under the circumatanices of the Case may be une or
more of the hoensees involved

1. Failure to provide protectio 1 or
control of access into the protected area;

2 Vailure to provide protection or
contiol of access to a vital area or
muaterial access area;

3 Fulure to provide protection or
control of access to the wransport vehicle
or the S5NM being transported; or

4. Failure to establish or maintain
safeguards systems designed or used to
detect the unauthorized removal of
Category 11 SNM from areas of
authorized use or storage.

D Seventy IV—Violations involving:

1. Failure to establish or maintain
salvaards systems designed or
employed to detect the unavthgrized
removal of Category 111 SNM from areas
of authorized use or storage;

2 Fuilure of the security organization
to follow procedures to cope with actual
security incidents that are not covered
by Seventy Levels L 11, or 1II;

3 Failure of corporate or site security
management to provide adequate
direction or supervision of the security
program that do not result in Severity
Level i, 11, or I violations; or

4 Inadequate review or the failure to
make a review in accordance with 10
CFR Part 21,

E. Scverity V=Other violations, such
as failure to lollow procedures or an
approved security plan, that have other
than minor safeguards significance.

F. Severity Vi—=Violations that have
tairor safeguards significance.

Supplement IV.—Severity Categories
Heaith Phy-ics 10 CFR Part 20

A Severity I=Violations involving:

1. Exposure of u worker in excess of
25 rems of radiation to the whoe body,
150 tems to the skan of the whole bady,
or 375 rems to the leet, ankles, hands, or
forearms;

2 Exposure of a member of the public
i excess of 0.5 rems of radiation;

3 Release of radioactive matenial to
an utirestncted area in excess of 10
times the linuts of 10 CFR 20.106;

A rudiation level in an unrestricted
area that exceeds 100 millirem/hour for
a one-hiour period,

S5 D posad of hieensed material in
Qrantities or concentrations i excess of
10 tiees the Jinits of 10 CER 20303 ur
29904, or

G Exposure of a worker in restricted
areas in excess of 10 times the lunits of
10CHT 20103

B Severnity H<Violations involving:

1. Exposure of a worker in excess of §
rems of radiation to the whole body, 30
rems to the skin of the whole body, or 75
rems to the fect, ankles, hands, or
fone prms;

2 Expecure of a member of the public
in excoss of 01 remas of radiation;

3. Relewse of radioactive material to
an unrestricted arenn excens of 5 imes
the limits of 10 CFR 20.106;

4. Falure to maoke an immedi-te
notification as required by 10 CER
20.400(a M) and 10 CER 20.403{a)i2):

5. Aradiation level in an unrestricted
area that exeeeds 50 mitiirem/hour for a
one hour period;

6. Disposal of heensed material in
quantities or concentrations in excess of
5 times the imits of 10 CER 20 303 or
20.304; or

7. Exoosare of a worker in restrictiod
areas in excess of 5 mes the himats of 10
CFR 20109,

C. Eeventy ll=Violations involving:

1. Exposure of a worker to levels in
excess of those specified in 10 CFR
20,101 or 20.104;

2. A tadiation level in an unrestricted
arca that excesds 5 miilicem/hour for a
one hour period;

3. Failurs to taake a 24 hoar
notitication as reguited by 10 CI'R
20.503(hY o an iruneaate notification
required by 10 C¥R 20.402(a);

4. Substantial potential for an
exposure or release in eveess of 10 CFR
20 where such exposure or release does
not oceui (eg, entry into high radiation
arca without having performed an
adequate survey opecation of o
radiaton frahity weth a nonfunctioning
imerlock system;;

5. Release of radionetive material to
an unreticied area in excess of the
liits of 19 CFR 20105

G D vosal of Loonsed material not
covered 1 Severity Levels Lor il

7. Expusure of ¢ worker in restricted
arvas moexcess of the limits of 10 CFR
20.100: or

8. Relewse for unrestricted vse of
contaminated materal or equipment
subistantially ia excess of NRC or
Licerse limits or the Lulure to
decontaminate plant arcas ny required.

D. Seventy IV--Violitions involving:

1. Fatlure to (ollow requirements (e g.,
inadequate survey, 1complete
dosime'ry, improper posting), not
covered i Heverity Lovels LWL o 340,
that subetuntally redoaces the neocoan of
salety;

2OA radaiion ool i on unee *ricted
arca such o an odhivi Sl mos receive
greater thon 2 mellirem in o ons hour
petiod ur 100 muilie o in any seven
conscoutive days,

3. Failure to make a2 day
notification reqoo ol by 10 CER 20.405;
or

bos wiequate rey tew or Gailure to
make a review 10 accourdance with 10
CER Past i1

F. Severity V=V bations iny olving:
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1. Failure to make a followup written
repert s reguaired by 10 CFR 20.402(b),
20.498. and 20.409, or

2. Aay ather matter, including failure

to follow procedures, that has other than

minor safety or enviruizmental
significance.

F. Ceverity Vi=Violations that have
rrinar satety or envirsamental
siershicance,

Supplement V--Seventy Catagories

Tronsportation
A Severity [=Vinlations of NRC

transpoit o pequing ments laveyina:

1. Hadintie 0 exposare of a member of
the prabii e i oxeess o1 0.5 tems of
vaiation or

2 Lwts ot pacioge intearily resuting
in arlace contanuration or external
rodhrtion levels in cxreas of ten (10)
times the NRC or Desartiment of
Transportanos (KOT) Hima .

. Severt'y I=V.olatiens of NRC
transportatioa Jequuements invaoivin g

1. Luss of package miten t=aulting
in _urfuce contameaation o exlernsl
janioton luvals i excess of NRC or
I tequ rements;

2. Sorfuce coniaminaticn or uxlo:m.cl
Fatiat on devels i excosa of tivee thme
Ni (‘ wt DOT Lmita that did nt wsuh
frem a h..' wh of pechage wtegrity; or

; to 1 ake regured m.uul
notincatons nssuclated vith Sevs ity
Lovel o I violations.,

C. Seventy Li=Viclations of NRC
Lansonrtation sequirements Lave!ving:

o Yreacn of package fiitegnity;

2 Gufoee contem nation or external
radiation levels in excess of, but less
than a faetor of thiee abuve NRC or
JOT cegaire nents, that Cid not regult
froim s breec’ of package inteprity:

1 Ay noncompiance with labelling,
placarding, shipping paper, packaging,

leading, or other requivements that could

rensonably resultin the fn'luwmg

a, bnproper identtication of the type,
quantity, or form of materal;

U Patlure of the carrier or recipiont to
exetciae adequate controls; or

o Substantod potential for perronnel
CApsire ar contarieo dhan, or

A F vihiare vo pieihe Qe o il
sotification paso ted wath Severity
Leveld H violations

D Sevenity av =Violations of NRC
rensportation requu o ments invelving:

1L Any rencompliance involvieg
peckage selcction er prenaration
requirenionts which does rot resnlt in s
bireach of package intoprity or surfiye
contimunation or extornal ragiation
levels in excoss of NRC or DOT
ooy regants

2. Vaiure & fullow mrocedures: or
iradeqrate o wediros, not covered in
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Seventy Level 1 I, or 1l violations; that
reduces the margin of safety: or

3. lnadeauate review or failure to
make u review in accordance with 10
CFR Part 21,

E. Severity V—Other violationz, such
as fatlure to follow procedures, that
hove other than minor safety or
arvitnmental significance.

", Severity VI==Violations that have
mines saety or ens crunmental
sipnificance.

Suppiement VI-=Severity Categoties
Furld Cy e Operations

A. Seventy [=Viclations invoiving:
1. A nuclear eriticality wecident; or
2. A svstem designed to prevent or

mitigate o serious safety event not Leing

operable when actually required to
perfora ris design function,

B. Seventy H—=Violations involving:

1. .\ system designed to prevent or
mitigate 4 serious safety event being
inoperetive: ’

2. Conduct of activittes not authorized
Ly the license that have a significant
safety imiplication; or

3. Foilure to make an immediate or
prampi report required to be made by
telephone or other elecironic means.

. Severity lil=Violations involving:

1. A degraded system designed to
provent or mitizate a serious safety
event (e, confinement bairiers or
criticality controls); or

2 Operation w'th a technically
ungualified or unautherized person
resulting in a reduced margin of safety.

D. Severity IV—Violations involving:

1. Inudequate review or the failure to
review activities in accordance with 10
CFR Part 21 or management reviews
required by the license that are not
performed or are performed
inadequately but that do not result in a
Ceverity Level L L or 111 violation;

2. Any operation limit not covered by
Sevenity Level 1L 11, or HI violations
heing excreded:

. Failure to follow requirements not
covered o0 Sevenity Level LI or HI
viodotions, that redoces the magan of
sulety or

4 Fadui o to ke o reguired 20 day
repurt.

I Seventy Ve Other violations, such
#9 Lulare w Iollow precedures, that
have other than minor safety or
environmental significance,

F. Severity VE=Violations that huve
minor safety or cavirominental

Scomticoonee
Supplemoent VIL—Severity Categories
Materials Operations

A. Severity I=Violations involving:

1. A technically unqualuﬁed or
unauthorized person conducting a
licensed activity that results in radiation
levels, contamination levels, or releases
that exceed 10 times the limits specified
in the license; g

2. Us# of unauthorized equipment that
results in radiation levels,
contamination levels, or releases that
exceed 10 times the limits specified in
the hicease;

3. Possession or use of unauthorized
matenials requiring a license, that results
in radiation levels, contamination levels,
or releases that exceed 10 times the
limits specified in the license;

4. Failure to perform required surv ys,
tests or evaluations, or to institute
required safety precautions that results
in rediation levels, contamination ievels,
or ielesses that exceed 10 times the
liniits specified in the license; or

5. A system designed to prevent or
mitigate a serious saiety event not being
operable when actually required to
perform its design function,

B. Seventy lI—Violations invelving:

1. A technically unqualified or
unauthorized persen conducting a
licensed activity thas sesults in radiation
levels, contamination levels, or releases
in excesy of license lunits;

2. Possession or use of unauthorized
equipment or material in the conduct of
licensed activities that results in
radiation levels, contamination levels, or
releases that exceed limits specified in
ihe license.

3. Faniure to perform required surveys,
tests, or evaluations that results in
radiation levels, contamination levels, or
releases that exceed the limits specifica
in the license.

4. Failure to make required initial
notifications associated with Severity
Level L or I violations: or

5. A system designed to prevent or
mitigate a serious safety event being
inoperative.

C. Severity llI—Violations invelving:

1. Failure to control access to licensed
materiala Por radiation purposes as
specifiod by NRC requirements;

. l'ul,’l"‘n‘.lllll OF une "l Il?l.lll',\‘lllf"l'
coppinent or materids wothe condoct of
licrusee achivities,

A Procurement of radioactive matenal
for hutiian use where such use i3 not
authorized;

4. Conduct of licensed activities by a
technically unquahified or unauthorized
purson;

5 Fatlure 1o make required imtial
nothications ussociated with Severity
Level HE viclations: or

6. Degradation of a system designed to
present or mitigate a serious safety
evenl,

D. Severity IV=Violations involving:
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